
MINUTES 
Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization/(CAMPO) 

Policy Board Meeting 
March 11, 2013 at 2:00 PM 

City Council Chambers, City Hall 
123 Washington Street 

Columbus, Indiana 
 

Members Present:  Kristen Brown, Zack Ellison, Roger Lang, Ryan Brand, Rick Flohr 
Alan Whitted, Jim Ude representing INDOT 
 
Members Absent: Kathy Eaton-McKalip   
 
Staff present: Laurence Brown, Dave Hayward, Aimee Morris 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Minutes of the December 21, 2012 meeting.  

Laurence Brown stated that the minutes from this meeting were not complete 
and therefore could not be accepted. 

 
New Members, Ryan Brand and Rick Flohr were welcomed  
Laurence stated that one County Council person has not been appointed yet. 

 
Zack Ellison stated that going forward quarterly meetings will be held. 
2nd Monday of every 3rd month  
 
Meetings are now being recorded and streamed live. 

          
NEW BUSINESS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 

 
MPO is a federally required body to distribute federal transportation dollars for local 
projects and state projects in the area.  Three documents which define the projects aree 
Long Range Plan, Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and the Statement of 
Work.  
 
Resolution 2013-1 

Resolution of the Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) 
Policy Board to Approve Changes to Existing Local Projects in   
SFY 2012-2016 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

 
600 N – Bartholomew County Project, Danny Hollander, 
Funds allotted by state, project about to let, all federal funds  
need to be included in the TIP  

  
200S - There was discussion about in which year this project should be 
included.  It was decided that 200S should be Year 2013 and not be 
changed to Year 2014, because the contract has been awarded and 
construction will begin very soon.  

 
 
     Carr Hill Road - 2014 



 
6 Pedestrian Crossings Improvements -   
In light of a Central Middle School student being struck by a vehicle at the 
CEHS/Marr Road crosswalk, Mayor Brown asked if the City had any 
control in how long this 6 Pedestrian Crossings Improvement project will 
take to implement.  Dave explained that we have to go through the 
Federal and State aid process, which is time consuming. A field check is 
scheduled for this week.  Dave explained that we can expedite our end of 
the process, and may be able to get it under contract yet this year, but not 
under construction this year.   

 
Roger Lang asked why the Parkside and Central crossing being 
redone. 
 
Dave explained that there were a lot of problems with that particular 
unit.  There are now other manufacturers making better units and it 
is being replaced at no cost to the City by the supplier and 
contractor. 
 
Mayor Brown asked if there was any way to accelerate the 
pedestrian crossings projects.   
 
Dave stated that we have to stay within the federal aid process, 
unless we want to go outside of this and separate one of the 
crossings out and put local money into it at 100%. 
 
Laurence stated that this is a HSIP, safety funding project, so it is a 
90/10 split. 

 
Bartholomew Consolidated School Corporation  
Safe Routes to School - Project numbers updated 

 
Rocky Ford Road - Corrected cost estimate. 
 
Taylor Road – Correct cost estimate. 
 
Westenedge Drive – Shifted from 2015 to 2017 
 
Bridge Inspections - Requirement for INDOT to have these in our TIP in   
order to be able to perform inspections.  
 

 City Signs – Replace signs to meet federal reflectivity standards.   
           Project was assigned DES# 1297755 
 

County Signs – Replace signs to meet federal reflectivity standards. 
      Project was assigned DES# 1297756 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Zack Ellison asked for any further questions on Resolution 2013-1.  
One amendment:  200S should be Year 2013. 
 
Motion: Roger Lang made a motion to approve Resolution 2013-1, as amended. Mayor 
Brown seconded this motion and it passed unanimously.   
 
Resolution 2013-2 

Resolution of the Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) 
Policy Board Adopting Changes to Transit Projects in the SFY 2012-2016 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
 

• Transit Projects were assigned DES#’s. 
• Line item changes to reflect an increase in costs and revenues. 
• Every 2 years, plan to replace one bus in the fleet. 
• Include the possible purchase of a new 35 foot bus for a new fixed route. 

Considering, but must be in the TIP.  
• Sending out a Request for Proposal for Call-A-Bus software 

 
Zack Ellison stated that if there are no questions, could he please have a motion.   
 
Roger Lang asked about the cost of a larger bus. 35 foot vs. 30 foot 
Are there studies that would justify the additional costs of capital?   
 
Laurence stated that a study is being conducted now that finishes in September.  
We are just reserving a spot for the bus on the TIP, in case we decide to purchase one. 
Money not appropriated. 
 
Zack Ellison asked if there were any other questions. 
 
Motion: Jim Ude made a motion to approve Resolution 2013-2.  It was seconded by 
Mayor Brown and passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution 2013-3 

Resolution of the Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) 
Policy Board to Modify and Amend Existing INDOT Projects in   
SFY 2012-2016 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
 
I65 – A few minor changes; such as in prices or years 
 
US31 - Correct typo 
 
SR58 - Road project west of I65 was suspended by INDOT, but kept in TIP by 
MPO.   
 
SR46 – Updating traffic hardware modernization. Suspended by INDOT, but kept 
in TIP by MPO. 
 
Jim Ude stated that INDOT was currently trying to find funding to reinstate this 
project.  

 
 



Mayor Brown asked for more information about traffic hardware modernization. 
Would that be considered maintenance or improvement? 
 
Jim Ude stated it is updating the technology/equipment that runs the signal, so 
both. 
 
Mayor Brown asked about better traffic flow from west of the City. 
 
Dave Hayward stated that he had been speaking with the District Traffic 
Engineer and would continue to do so. It most likely will take more than signal 
improvements to help. 
 
Mayor Brown asked if INDOT is doing anything at SR11 where it floods and has 
to be closed. 
 
INDOT representative stated there is an improvement at Garden City area with 
installing a new structure. 
 
Dave Hayward said that is a project that has been discussed for many years and 
INDOT even completed a couple of scoping studies, however no active projects 
in that area.  Goals would be to raise area, so it doesn’t flood and also increase 
capacity. 
 
Mayor asked how we make requests to INDOT. 
 
Jim Ude stated that a letter could be written to the District Commissioner with the 
requests. 
 
Mayor expressed concern about the flooding and closures.  We improve 200S to 
get to SR11 and bottleneck or it is closed.  Who would the letters come from? 
MPO?  Mayor’s Office?  Laurence was asked to compose a letter. 
 
SR46 & SR9 – Dollar changes 
 
SR11 – Dollar amount changes 
 
INDOT has been waiting for us to approve Bridge Deck Overlay into our TIP, so 
they can move ahead.  
 
Laurence is working on some by-laws which would allow some minor changes be 
made to the TIP outside the quarterly meeting.  Examples: emergencies, small 
dollar amounts, date changes, public safety issues. 
 
SR9 – Minor changes in dates and dollars.   
 
SR7 – Minor changes 
 
Zack Ellison asked a question about ultra-thin resurface paving. 
 
Jason explained that it is a pavement preservation treatment.   
 
Zack Ellison asked if there were any questions about Resolution 2013 -3. 



 
 
Roger Lang stated that some of the small or minor cost changes are 10% and 
not considered minor. How are these changes scrutinized or reviewed? 
 
Laurence Brown stated that Resolution #2 is about INDOT funds and numbers 
and their review process. INDOT uses asset management processes to 
determine their numbers.  Sometimes costs change. INDOT makes careful 
estimates and then refines the costs.  Scopes of work may change also. 
 
Public Input: 
Zack Ellison opened up the floor for comments or concerns about any of the 
three resolutions.  
 
Motion: Roger Lang made a motion to approve Resolution 2013-3.  Jim Ude 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.   

 
Local Projects of Concern 
  

Maple Street – US31 earmark may have been returned; INDOT perceives non-
activity. 
 
Bridge 26 to Haw Creek Trail – Grant was suspended by INDOT; however it is an 
important project to the community. 
 
Zack Ellison stated that more communication is needed on these types of 
projects. 

 
Laurence Brown gave a brief update on the current Statement of Work and verified the 
quarterly meetings time and date.   
 
Zack Ellison asked if anyone had anything to discuss.  
 
Jim Ude announced Tony McClellan may be taking his place on the Board. 
 
Laurence Brown announced that the existing Technical Committee will be meeting prior 
to the Policy Board Meetings.  They will be reviewing and approving resolutions prior to 
the Policy Board. 
 
Laurence was asked if he was going to compose a letter to INDOT about the issues 
discussed at this meeting. Commissioners would be happy to sign and/or support. 
 
Motion: Mayor Brown made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Rick 
Flohr and the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 

 
 

  
  
 


